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REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
New York Lottery Broadcast Studio Design & Integration Services    

Round 1 – Questions and Answers 
Release Date:  March 8, 2017   

 
 
Q.1:   Who is responsible for the installation and decommissioning of the temporary 

studio space/technical system to be used during the system rebuild? 
 
A.1:    The Commission and the New York State Office of General Services, Media 

Service Center (“MSC”) will be responsible for the temporary studio space. 
 
Q.2:   Who is responsible for the transport of all existing equipment, consoles, racks 

and cabling to the storage location? 
 
A.2:   The existing equipment will be removed and wrapped by the successful 

bidder.  The Commission will arrange for transport offsite. 
 
Q.3:  Is any equipment other than that specified in Section 2. b). iv. (page 46)  to be re-

used? If so please provide a list. 
 
A.3:   It is anticipated that much of the existing equipment will require 

replacement.  All attendees of the mandatory site visit, to be held on March 
21, will have an opportunity to tour the studio and control room.  Also, 
following award, the successful bidder will have ample opportunity to 
further assess what existing equipment may be integrated into the new 
studio.   

 
Q.4:    Is this a union installation? If so what is the preferred union? 
 

A.4:   The scope of work does not include any work that would be considered 
Public Work by the New York State Department of Labor, Bureau of Public 
Works.  The New York State Department of General Services, Design & 
Construction Group will arrange for Public Work services separately (e.g. 
construction, flooring, painting, electrical wiring, etc.). If you have 
questions regarding the work covered under this RFP, you may contact the 
Bureau of Public Works at (518) 457-2744 or email PWAsk@labor.state.ny.us. 

 
Q.5:    Is there a minimum wage requirement? 

A.5:   See A.4. 

mailto:PWAsk@labor.state.ny.us
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Q.6:   Can installation work continue in the control room area during the 11.00 am to 
1.00 pm drawings? 

 

A.6:   It is possible for work to continue during the 11:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. 
drawings, but this would depend on the work and would need to be 
coordinated with drawings staff. 

 
Section 3.1.A.1(a), second paragraph, second sentence wording “…all work 
will need to pause…” the word “will” is deleted and replaced with “may” 
consistent with the clarification above.   

 
Q.7:  Is any part of the new lighting system installation, commissioning or training part 

of this scope of work? If so please define. 
 

 A.7: No, all lighting is excluded from the scope of work under this RFP. 
 
Q.8:  Is the facility audio only to be stereo? 

 
A.8:  Stereo only is the audio format.  All digital equipment will be able to handle 

additional channels if necessary in the future. 
   
 Q.9:  Is there any requirement for the system to be upgradable to support either 

1080P60 (3G), 4K or support HDR or WCG? If so please define. 
 

A.9:    No.   
  
Q.10:  What connectivity is required to support the transmission of live and pre-recorded 

material to third parties hardware? 
 

A.10 Connectivity that will accept the HD-SDI 1080i signals throughout the 
signal path to the Broadcast stations.  This is usually a copper connection, 
but file transfer capability will also be important.   

 
Q.11:  Are the phase 1 schematics to be fully run listed or are just the empty targets to 

be placed in the schematics for others to use? 
 

A.11: In relation to the “draft” schematics in Phase One, the equipment list must 
be included with any bid and therefore the “targets” could easily be “fully 
run listed.” 

 
Q.12:  What is the required completion date for the installation?  
 



RFP:  New York Lottery Broadcast Studio Design & Integration Page 3 
 

A.12: The completion of Phase Two, which includes installation, testing and 
training, shall not exceed 60 days. The 60 day period will commence at the 
point when all work to be handled by OGS Design and Construction 
(flooring, etc.) is complete, all equipment is received by the Commission, 
and the successful bidder begins work.   It is anticipated that the 
successful bidder will cooperate with the Commission in scheduling the 
work.   

   
  If desired by the Commission and the successful bidder, and as scheduling 

allows, installation of equipment may begin following OGS’ work 
completion, but prior to the receipt of all equipment, such as when a 
majority of equipment is on-site.  This alternate arrangement will not 
change the 60-day requirement stated above.   
 

Q.13:  Please define the list of deliverables at the conclusion of phase 1. 
 
 
A.13: With the exception of item (g) under RFP Section 3.1.A.1, which is deleted 

in its entirety, the successful bidder will be responsible for all requirements 
listed under Section 3.1.A – Phase One – Design Services, including (1) 
Studio and Control Room Design and (2) Recommendation of Equipment 
and Related Materials.  

 
For clarification purposes, following the design of the studio and control 
room, the successful bidder will be required to provide the Commission 
with a draft schematic drawing of the design.  A final schematic drawing 
will be provided at the conclusion of Phase Two – Integration, Testing and 
Training.  See amended language below for Phase Two.   
 
RFP Section 3.1.C.1 (c) is amended as follows: 
 

 Documentation: 
 

Upon completion and Commission acceptance of the installation, the successful 
respondent shall provide the following: 

(i) Two (2) final schematics of the studio design and relevant details; 
 

(ii) Two (2) complete schematics of as-built audio and video wiring; two (2) 
complete wiring lists and complete technical specifications of each piece 
of equipment.  All cabling, other than electrical wiring shall be marked with 
unique designations at both ends.  All cable designations shall be 
indicated on the schematics.   
 
The drawings shall be “C-Size” (17” x 22”) and a “non-locked” image 
software version (PDF, JPEG, etc.) on a CD or other agreed upon form of 
media, and shall include complete technical specifications of each piece of 
equipment. 
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Q.14:  Other than providing consulting services during the Interim Period is this bidder 

responsible for any upgrades or repairs of the existing stage; or is this all the 
responsibility of OGS? If the bidder is to assist OGS in any manner please define 
all scope and responsibilities. 

 

A.14: No, the bidder will not provide any repairs.  The bidder is only responsible 
for consulting services, if needed, during the interim period.  Once 
equipment is received at the site, the Commission will coordinate with the 
successful bidder to install the equipment. 

 
Q.15:  If the Commission or a third party is to purchase the equipment and NOT the 

phase 2 installer; please describe how the equipment will be supplied to the 
installer’s place of business in a timely manner so as not to impact timelines and 
hence costs, and how any equipment transport/delivery costs will be dealt with? 

 
A.15: All equipment will be purchased by the Commission and will be delivered 

to the Commission at the installation site.   
 
Q.16:  May the systems integrator provide equipment providing that the equipment 

pricing is competitive? 
 

A.16: No, equipment is not included in the scope of this RFP.  However, the 
successful bidder under this RFP is not prohibited from responding to any 
solicitation for equipment the Commission may issue. 

 
Q.17:  Are [we] able to submit pricing for the proposed equipment as well as the design 

and consultancy? We would like to be part of the competitive solicitation 
process.   

 
A.17: See A.16 
 
Q.18:  Are we also able to tender for the contract of production staffing?   

 
A.18:  Production staffing is not included in the scope of work under this RFP, 

and is not competitively procured.  Staffing is provided by New York State 
Media Service Center, a division of the Office of General Services.  

 
Q.19:  From submission on April 13th there is nothing until proposed start date in 

October. When do you envisage being able to announce successful companies?  
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A.19:  It is anticipated that the apparent winner will be notified in June of 2017, so 
that contract documents may be completed.  The contract will not be 
effective until approval is obtained from the Office of the Attorney General 
and the Office of the State Comptroller, which is anticipated in September 
2017.   The anticipated start date of the contract is October 1, 2017. 

 
Q.20:  Proposal will remain valid for 180 days from the point of proposal. Does this 

include pricing or simply solution design?  

 
A.20: The entire contents of the proposal, including pricing, must remain valid for 

180 days. 
 
Q.21:  Notification of published addenda to the RFP - Changes will be on the web, but 

will we be alerted via email or phone call?   
 

A.21:  No, it is the bidder’s responsibility to check the website periodically for 
updates.  The predetermined updates, such as the questions and answers 
are identified in the RFP Schedule under Section 1.6 of the RFP. 

 
Q.22:  1 person production environment, does this mean 1 person for both audio and 

video or 1 person for each?  

 
A.22:  One person for both. The control room systems should be designed and 
 configured for complete audio and video operation by one (1) person. 

 
Q.23:  Are there any further schematic drawings or plans with dimensions for the 

existing / planned space? It would also be useful to see images of the existing 
production space.  

 
A.23:  No.  There are no other drawings.  A mandatory site visit will be held in the 

Lottery’s studio on March 21, 2017.  At this time, all potential bidders will 
have an opportunity to have a walk through and ask questions, to which 
the Commission will respond in person and/or in writing by March 23.    
Also, see A.29. 

 
Q.24:  What wall coverings and floorings are in place and do you have plans for the 

replacement equipment? Are the walls already acoustically treated or do we 
need to consider this when specifying / installing?  

 
A.24:  Presently the flooring is concrete covered, in part, by rubberized flooring.  

Recommendation of the floor finishing is part of the Phase One Design 
Services.  The walls are already acoustically treated and do not require 
updating.   
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Q.25:  Non wall mounted Green Screen - does this mean there is a desire for this to be 
mobile?   

 
A.25: The Green Screen does not need to be mobile; just not permanently affixed 

to the wall.  It is expected that the Green Screen be free standing and easy 
to remove and re-install in the event of a set reconfiguration, but it does not 
need to be mobile in the sense of having the capability to be moved 
around, such as on wheels.    

 
Q.26:  There are many mentions of the need to re-use existing equipment.  Can we see 

a list of what is currently in use in order to determine suitability?   

 
A.26:  See A.3. 
 
Q.27:  Does the SAN have to be on premise or could this be cloud based? If yes, please 

advise on existing internet bandwidth? 

 
A.27: The SAN should be on premise and should not be cloud based. As required 
 under RFP Section 3.1.A.2 (b) (xii), “The SAN should accommodate RAID 
 storage with hot-swappable drives.” 

 
Q.28:  Is there a complete, specific list of existing equipment of which re-purposing is 

desired? 
 
A.28:  See A.3. 

Q.29:  Will we be able to ask questions regarding the project during the walk-through or 
will those questions need to be asked in writing, during the Second Round of 
Questions, due March 30, 2017? 

A.29:  Questions may be asked during the mandatory site visit on March 21.   
Commission staff and staff from the OGS MSC will be present to answer 
questions.  A summary of all questions and answers from the site visit, as 
well as answers to questions asked during the site visit, but requiring more 
research for response, will be documented and posted on our website on 
March 23, as an amendment.  The First and Second round of questions & 
answers are separate from the site visit questions & answers in order to 
provide ample opportunity for interested bidders to obtain the necessary 
information.   
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